Monterey Regional Water
Pollution Control Agency
“Dedicated to meeting the wastewater and recycled water needs
of our member agencies, while protecting the environment.”

AGENDA
BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE (BPC)
Rudy Fischer, Chair
Dennis Allion, Gloria De La Rosa, Peter Le
[Alternate – Linda Grier]
DATE:

Friday, November 13, 2015

TIME:

12:30 p.m.

LOCATION:

Admin Conference Room
5 Harris Court, Building D

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Anyone wishing to address the Committee on matters not appearing on the Agenda may do so now. Comments on
any other matter listed on the Agenda are welcome at the time the matter is being considered by the Committee.

4. APPROVE BPC MINUTES FOR OCTOBER 9, 2015
5. RECEIVE FY 2014/15 DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
6. TOTAL COMPENSATION STUDY UPDATE
7. BUDGET AMENDMENTS UPDATE
8. CONSIDER LINE OF CREDIT BANKING PROPOSALS
9. STAFF REPORTS
10. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS
Committee Members may ask a question for clarification, make a brief announcement or make a brief comment or
report on his or her own activities within the jurisdiction of the committee. No discussion or action is appropriate
other than referral to staff for consideration or setting a matter as a future agenda item.

Joint Powers Authority Member Entities:
Boronda County Sanitation District, Castroville Community Services District, County of Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Fort Ord, Marina Coast Water District, Monterey,
Moss Landing County Sanitation District, Pacific Grove, Salinas, Sand City, and Seaside.

11. CLOSED SESSION
As permitted by Government Code Session 54956 et seq., the committee may adjourn to a Closed or Executive
Session to consider specific matters dealing with litigation, certain personnel matters, property negotiations or to
confer with the Agency’s Meyers-Milias-Brown Act representative

A.

Public Employee Performance Evaluation
(Pursuant to Government Code 54957)

Title: General Manager
12. POSSIBLE ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS
The Committee will report out on any reportable action taken during Closed Session, and may take additional
action in Open Session, as appropriate.

13. ADJOURNMENT

*********

This Committee Meeting Notice and Agenda was hereby posted at the
MRWPCA Administrative offices, 5 Harris Court, Building D, Monterey,
California 93940.
POSTED:

Tuesday, November 10, 2015

BY:

/s/ Chayito Ibarra
Executive Assistant/Clerk to the Board

Monterey Regional Water
Pollution Control Agency
“Dedicated to meeting the wastewater and recycled water needs
of our member agencies, while protecting the environment.”

COMMITTEE
MINUTES/REPORT
BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
Friday, October 9, 2015
12:30 pm to 1:10 pm
5 Harris Court, Building D
Monterey, California
1.
2.
3.
4.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
PUBLIC COMMENTS
APPROVE BPC MINUTES/REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 11, 2015

5.
6.

CONSIDER AND APPROVE CONTRACT FOR SVRP CHLORINE
SCRUBBER REFURBISHMENT PROJECT
FINANCIAL PROJECTS UPDATE

7.
8.
9.

STAFF REPORTS
COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS
ADJOURNMENT

PRESENT:

Budget/Personnel Committee
Rudy Fischer, Chair
Dennis Allion
Gloria De La Rosa
Peter Le

ABSENT:

None

PRESENT:

MRWPCA Staff:
Paul Sciuto
Stephen Hogg
Deborah Mall
Tori Hannah
Jennifer Gonzalez
Cheryl Franzen

General Manager
Assistant General Manager
Legal Counsel
Chief Financial Officer
Engineering Manager
Administrative Support Specialist

Joint Powers Authority Member Entities:
Boronda County Sanitation District, Castroville Community Services District, County of Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Fort Ord, Marina Coast Water District, Monterey,
Moss Landing County Sanitation District, Pacific Grove, Salinas, Sand City, and Seaside.

Minutes
Budget/Personnel Committee
October 9, 2015

OTHERS PRESENT:
None
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
At 12:31 pm, Chair Fischer called for Public Comments; none received.
4. APPROVE BPC MINUTES/REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 11, 2015
Chair Fischer stated that the September 11, 2015 draft Budget/Personnel Committee
Minutes are presented to the Committee for their approval.
ACTION TAKEN: On a motion by Mr. Le, seconded by Ms. De La Rosa, the
Budget/Personnel Committee unanimously approved the September 11, 2015 BPC
Minutes. [Yes: Fischer, De La Rosa, Allion and Le]

5. CONSIDER AND APPROVE CONTRACT FOR SVRP CHLORINE SCRUBBER
REFURBISHMENT PROJECT
Ms. Gonzalez stated that as a result of an employee-driven OSHA complaint, a
citation was issued on the maintenance of the Chlorine scrubber system. The citation,
received at the end of August, assessed a penalty of $875 to the Agency and called
for repairs to be made to the Scrubber System by September 25. Staff met with
Cal/OSHA by phone on September 3 to discuss the penalty and the timeline since the
abatement date for repairs would not give the Agency enough time to go through the
bid process and complete the work. The Cal/OSHA staff agreed to an extension of
the abatement date to early February to complete the repairs. MRWPCA staff issued
a bid package and received one bid on October 6 from Picon FRP, Inc. for $67,587.
Ms. Gonzalez stated that the project will be paid for by Monterey County Water
Resources Agency (MCWRA).
To Mr. Le’s question about the employee OSHA complaint, Mr. Sciuto stated that he
met with the employee who felt safety issues were not being addressed and there was
no proper communication path to do so. Since the complaint, the Agency has put
suggestion boxes at both RTP and Admin and holds quarterly safety meetings to
address complaints/suggestions and any other employee concerns.
Discussion continued about how the reimbursement process will work with MCWRA
and the Agency’s 10% contingency policy for contracts.
ACTION TAKEN:
On a motion by Mr. Le, seconded by Mr. Allion, the
Budget/Personnel Committee unanimously recommends the Board approve a
contract with Picon FRP, Inc. in the amount of $67,587 for the Chlorine Scrubber
Refurbishment Contract. [Yes: Fischer, De La Rosa, Allion and Le]
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Budget/Personnel Committee
October 9, 2015

6. FINANCIAL PROJECTS UPDATE
Ms. Hannah updated the committee on several ongoing financial projects. She
stated that the Agency is pursuing a $10 million line of credit to assist with cash flow
to supplement a State Revolving Loan. The Agency’s financial advisor has found at
least four organizations that are interested in providing a financing proposal. It is
anticipated that the Agency will secure a line of credit by the end of December 2015.
In regards to the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), Ms. Hannah
stated that in September, the Agency’s auditors completed their year-end fieldwork.
The results were positive and draft financial statements are anticipated to be provided
to the committee in November with a final CAFR provided to the full board in
November. Staff had previously identified and the auditors also cited a need for a
formal Capital Asset Policy; staff is currently developing a policy and hopes to bring
the policy to the committee for review in November or January.
Ms. Hannah stated that in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, the Agency will
receive two separate annual PERS Actuarial Valuation Reports for each retirement
plan. She noted that this will not impact rates, but will bring the liability numbers to
the front of the statements. In response to Mr. Le’s and Mr. Allion’s questions, Ms.
Hannah stated that the Agency spent about $1.2 million in FY 2014 for PERS
retirement plan and the expense is classified as a salary expense.
Mr. Sciuto stated that staff has looked at comparison Agency reserve policies and
found that there is a wide range of practices. Staff is currently looking to find what
kind of policy is most appropriate for the Agency and plans to bring several options
and a recommendation to the Committee. Ms. Hannah noted that the Agency must
absorb the costs for the spill in Pacific Grove and the PERS rate increase. With the
cash flow needs for the monthly construction costs for Pure Water Monterey, there is
not much flexibility; therefore, staff will review the Agency Reserve Policy and
Investment Allocations and prepare recommendations as necessary. Mr. Allion
suggested revisiting previous projections.
 Information only – No action is required.
7. STAFF REPORTS
Mr. Sciuto stated that some purchasing and personnel policies are becoming out of
date and staff is working to bring these policies current. He also noted that the
Information System Administrator has been creating IT policies with the IT Steering
Committee in conjunction with the IT Strategic Plan. Mr. Le added that he attended a
discussion at the CSDA Conference about security and computer hacking and
learned how easy it can be to hack into some computer systems.
With regards to the Pacific Grove spill, Mr. Sciuto stated that staff is reviewing
settlement options and is attempting to schedule a meeting in October with the
Regional Board in San Luis Obispo.
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Minutes
Budget/Personnel Committee
October 9, 2015

8. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS
Ms. De La Rosa asked if the Agency conducts security and harassment training. Mr.
Sciuto stated that the Agency conducts harassment training every two years for
employees. Currently, the Agency does not have security training; however, the
Agency does have a policy regarding internet security and personal use of Agency
computers.

9. ADJOURNMENT
At 1:10 pm, with no further business, Chair Fischer adjourned the Budget/Personnel
Committee meeting to the next regularly scheduled Budget/Personnel Committee
meeting on Friday, November 13, 2015 at 12:30 pm.
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Monterey Regional Water
Pollution Control Agency
“Dedicated to meeting the wastewater and recycled water needs
of our member agencies, while protecting the environment.”

BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
NOVEMBER 13, 2015
INFORMATION ITEM
RECEIVE FISCAL YEAR 2014/15 DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
From:

Tori Hannah, Chief Financial Officer

Approval: GM
Legal
CFO
──────────────────────────────────────────────────────
Background:
A draft copy of the Agency’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Statements (CAFR) is
provided for review (Attachment A). The Agency’s audit was performed by Lance, Soll
& Lunghard, LLP. The final CAFR which will include the Transmittal Letter, the
Management Discussion and Analysis Section; and the Statistical Section will be
available at the November Board Meeting.
Staff is pleased to report that the Agency has again received an unqualified or “clean”
opinion. The Independent Auditor’s Report, which is included on Page 6 of the CAFR,
states “In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Agency, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
During their fieldwork, the auditors identified the need for the Agency to prepare a
comprehensive Capital Asset Policy. Currently, capital asset thresholds, along with
asset surplus and disposition procedures are included in the Agency’s Purchasing
Policy. Staff is in the process of preparing this document, with full implementation
anticipated in January.
The Fiscal Year 2014/15 Financial Statements include the implementation of
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 – Accounting and
Financial Statement Reporting for Pensions. Bryan Gruber, CPA and Partner of Lance,
Soll, and Lunghard, LLP will provide information regarding this new Statement at the
Budget and Personnel Committee Meeting. It should be noted that due to the
requirements of GASB 68, only one year of data will be presented in the Financial
Joint Powers Authority Member Entities:
Boronda County Sanitation District, Castroville Community Services District, County of Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Fort Ord, Marina Coast Water District, Monterey,
Moss Landing County Sanitation District, Pacific Grove, Salinas, Sand City, and Seaside.

Budget/Personnel Committee
November 13, 2015
Page 2

Statements Section of the document. Three years of comparative information will be
presented in the Management, Discussion, and Analysis Section of the CAFR.
Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact.
 Information only – no action needed.

Attachments:
A: Draft Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015
B: Audit Communication Letter
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
Monterey, California
Report on the Financial Statements

AF
T

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Monterey Regional Water Pollution
Control Agency, (the Agency) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

R

Auditor’s Responsibility

D

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for
California Special District. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

To the Board of Directors
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Agency, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Change in Accounting Principle

Other Matters

AF
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As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2015 the District adopted new accounting guidance,
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27.

Required Supplementary Information

D
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the schedule of the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and
the schedule of contributions, the schedule of investment returns, the schedule of net pension liability and
the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the debt covenant schedule
and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.
The debt covenant schedule is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the debt covenant schedule
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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To the Board of Directors
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

D

R

Brea California
_______________, 2015

AF
T

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
___________, 2015, on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.
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MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

2015

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Restricted - cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Accounts receivable - customers, net
Accounts receivable - restricted
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits

$

Total Current Assets

5,536,874
805,518
4,029,291
241,782
184,055
98,778
10,896,298

Non-current Assets:
Salinas Valley Reclamation Project receivable (note 3)
Capital assets - not being depreciated (note 4)
Capital assets, net - being depreciated (note 4)

10,141,344
12,329,255
81,422,046
103,892,645

Total Assets

114,788,943

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred items related to pensions (note 5)
Deferred loss on debt defeasance, net (note 5)

AF
T

Total Non-Current Assets

1,499,567
607,657

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities and Net Position

$

116,896,167

$

5,101,772
764,698
435,527
62,000
246,572
53,518

R

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable from restricted assets
Accrued wages and related payables
Unearned revenue and other deposits
Collection charges passed thru to member entities
Accrued interest payable
Long-term liabilities - due within one year:
Compensated absences (note 6)
Bonds payable (note 8)
Bonds payable - pension-related (note 7)
Loans payable (note 9)

2,107,224

D

338,682
1,258,144
440,000
1,215,668

Total Current Liabilities

9,916,581

Non-current Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year:
Net pension liability (note 11)
Compensated absences (note 6)
Bonds payable (note 8)
Bonds payable - pension-related (note 7)
Loans payable (note 9)

12,355,784
508,024
10,498,552
7,330,000
14,614,151

Total Non-Current Liabilities

45,306,511

Total Liabilities

55,223,092

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred items related to pensions (note 5)

4,654,209

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

4,654,209

Net Position: (note 10)
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

76,913,787
282,602
(20,177,523)

Total Net Position

57,018,866

Total Liabilities and Net Position

See Notes to Financial Statements

$
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116,896,167

MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
2015
Operating Revenues:
Wastewater user fees - residential customers
Wastewater user fees - others
Reclamation and diversion operations reimbursement
Other charges for services

$

Total Operating Revenues

25,917,245

Operating Expenses:
Administrative
Finance and human resources
Environmental services
Field maintenance
Regional treatment plant - operations and maintenance
Regional treatment plant - administrative
Cogeneration
Major maintenance and operations projects
Reclamation - operations and maintenance
Reclamation distribution - operations and maintenance
Salinas River diversion facility - operations and maintenance

1,804,455
1,968,384
1,463,464
3,394,669
7,384,874
563,212
1,148,987
371,077
1,958,677
1,280,642
76,010
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Total Operating Expenses

15,313,846
6,151,220
3,571,865
880,314

21,414,451

Operating income before overhead absorption
Overhead absorption - capitalized operating expenses

4,502,794
1,491,439
5,994,233
(5,055,959)
1,137,695

R

Operating income before depreciation expense
Depreciation expense - capital recovery
Depreciation expense recovery for SVRP (note 3)

2,075,969

Non-Operating Revenue (expense):
Investment earnings
Change in fair-value of investments
Debt service recovery - Salinas Valley Reclamation Project
Interest expense - long-term debt
Amortization of deferred outflows of resources (note 5)
CSRMA insurance rebates
Other non-operating revenue (expense), net

112,088
(14,532)
604,511
(1,283,424)
(55,242)
46,698
39,548

D

Operating Income

Total Non-Operating, Net

(550,353)

Net Income Before Capital Contributions

1,525,616

Capital Contributions:
Capacity charges
Capital contributions

835,956
2,989,729

Total Capital Contributions

3,825,685

Change in Net Position

5,351,301

Net Position:
Beginning of Year

67,390,560

Restatements

(15,722,995)

Beginning of Year, as restated

51,667,565

Net position, end of year
See Notes to Financial Statements

$
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57,018,866

MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
2015
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash receipts from customers and others
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

5,461,164

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Principal paid on pension related debt
Interest paid on pension related debt

(410,000)
(362,689)

Net cash used in non-capital financing activities

(772,689)

AF
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Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Capital contributions
Proceeds from Salinas Valley Reclamation Project receivable
Debt service recovery - Salinas Valley Reclamation Project
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt

(8,616,149)
3,825,685
1,207,749
604,511
(2,518,592)
(924,092)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Investment earnings
Net cash provided by investing activities

(6,420,888)

111,345
111,345

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

R

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

27,375,409
(4,278,008)
(17,636,237)

(1,621,068)
7,963,460
$

6,342,392

$

(5,536,874)
(805,518)

$

(6,342,392)

$

2,075,969

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to statement of financial position:

D

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents
Operating Income

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense - capital recovery
Depreciation expense recovery for SVRP
CSRMA insurance rebates
Other non-operating revenue, net
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase)decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable - customers, net
Accounts receivable - restricted
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits
Increase(decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable and restricted assets
Accrued wages and related payables
Unearned revenue and other deposits
Collection charges passed thru to member entities
Change in Net Pension Liability and related items
Compensated absences

5,055,959
(1,137,695)
46,698
39,548

1,056,032
1,354,263
119,176
185,385
12,033
(1,802,658)
(334,114)
(793,252)
(245,125)
(212,569)
41,514

Total adjustments

3,385,195

Net cash provided by operating activities
See Notes to Financial Statements

$
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5,461,164

MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

R
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In November 1971, the City of Pacific Grove and the Seaside County Sanitation Agency
executed a joint powers agreement (JPA), thus forming the Monterey Peninsula
Water Pollution Control Agency (Monterey Peninsula WPCA), with Fort Ord as an
ex-officio member. In February 1972, the City of Monterey became a signatory of the
JPA. The Monterey Peninsula WPCA was responsible for proceeding with the design and
construction of a regional wastewater treatment and disposal system for communities
adjoining the Southern Monterey Bay area in Monterey County, which were
designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and the State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB), as Clean Water Projects 748 and 1066. The
Monterey Peninsula WPCA expanded its membership to include the City of Salinas and
Monterey County in April 1975. In March 1976, the Cities of Seaside, Sand City, and Del
Rey Oaks (cities which comprise the Seaside County Sanitation Agency), became
individual signatories to the JPA. In January 1977, the Monterey County Board of
Supervisors formed the Monterey Regional County Sanitation Agency (Monterey Regional
CSD) to provide sewage treatment and disposal services to the sewered portions of
northern Monterey County. Monterey Regional CSD was established to own and
operate the existing and proposed project facilities, and to establish, collect and enforce
sewer user charges. In June 1979, the present Monterey Regional Water Pollution
Control Agency (Agency), superseded the Monterey Peninsula WPCA. Also, in
June 1979, the Monterey Regional CSD transferred all its properties and assets to the
Agency. In April 1985, Fort Ord became a full voting member of the Agency, and
Castroville County Sanitation Agency became a member of the Agency. The Boronda
County Sanitation Agency became a member of the Agency in June 1987. The
Agency has all of the broad powers of the older entities and has assumed all of their
obligations. In April 1989, the Agency entered into an Annexation Agreement with the
Marina County Water Agency (MCWD) enabling the MCWD to become a full voting
member of the Agency and establishing the terms and conditions by which the MCWD
would become a member entity. In November 1999, due to the closure of Fort Ord,
Fort Ord’s representation changed to that of a non-voting member. The Agency
functions as a self-supporting governmental enterprise activity and, accordingly, the
financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis.

D

Note 1:

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Statements No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity.
The Agency is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately
elected governing board that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election.
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the
primary government are financially accountable. The Agency is financially accountable
if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and: 1) It is able to
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary
government.
The Monterey Regional Wastewater Finance Authority (the Authority), an entity legally
separate from the Agency, is governed by substantially all the board members of the
Agency. The Authority is inactive as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
b. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus
The Agency reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business
enterprise, where the intent of the Agency is that the costs of providing wastewater
services on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges
(user fees), capital grants and similar funding. Revenues and expenses are
recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

AF
T

Operating revenues and expenses result from exchange transactions associated with
the principal activity of the Agency. Exchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Management, administration and
depreciation expenses are also considered operating expenses. Other revenues and
expenses not included in the above categories are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.
c. Financial Reporting

R

The Agency’s basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as
applied to enterprise funds. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The Agency solely operates as a special-purpose
government which means it is only engaged in business-type activities; accordingly,
activities are reported in the Agency’s proprietary fund.
d. Assets, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, Liabilities and Net Position

D

Note 1:

1. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Substantially all of the Agency’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The
Agency considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
to be cash equivalents.
3. Investments
Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment
income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings,
changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of
investments.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
4. Restricted Assets
Restricted assets are cash and cash equivalents and investments whose use is limited
by legal and debt covenant requirements such as debt payment, reserve balance
maintenance and accrued interest on bonds.
5. Accounts Receivable and User Fee Revenue Recognition

AF
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The Agency has made no provisions for uncollectible user fee receivables as all
significant accounts are considered collectible. All user fee revenue is recognized
when the related services are provided. Billings are on a bi-monthly basis and, as
such, revenues reflected in the financial statements include accruals based on
estimates for the period between termination of the billing cycle and the end of the
fiscal year. User service charges are based on wastewater flow and strength criteria
as set forth by the EPA and Agency determined flow. Other receivables are
written-off when they are deemed uncollectable.
6. Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in,
first-out) or market. Inventory items are charged to expense at the time that
individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed.

R

7. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting
periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.
8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

D

Note 1:

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense) until then. The government only has two items that qualify
for reporting in this category. One is the deferred charge on refunding resulting from
the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or
refunding debt. The second item is deferred outflows relating to the net pension
liability statement of net position. These outflows are the results of contributions
made after the measurement period, which are expensed in the following year, and
of adjustments due to difference in proportions and the difference between actual
contributions made and the proportionate share of the risk pool’s total contributions.
These amounts are deferred and amortized over the expected average remaining
service life of active plan participants.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The government has only one item that qualifies for
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
reporting in this category which are deferred inflows relating to the net pension
liability reported in the statement of net position. These inflows are the result of the
net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments.
This amount is deferred and amortized straight-line over a five year period.
9. Capital Assets
Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. Agency
policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $2,500.
Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains
or losses are recognized.

AF
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Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives of
the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows: buildings, 20 to
40 years; improvements, 10 to 20 years; equipment, 3 to 10 years.
10. Construction-in-Progress

R

The cost of acquisition and construction of major plant and equipment is recorded as
construction in progress (CIP). As facilities are constructed by the Agency and
become operative, they are transferred from CIP to the plant and equipment
accounts, or are expensed if determined that the cost does not meet the
requirements of the capitalization policy.
11. Compensated Absences

The Agency’s policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation and
compensatory time. Upon termination of employment, employees are paid all
unused vacation and compensatory time.

D

Note 1:

12. Net Pension Liability
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial
Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. CalPERS audited financial
statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website
under Forms and Publications.
13. Capital Grants and Capacity Charges
Funding for the capital assets of the Agency has been provided primarily from
capital grants by the EPA, the SWRCB, the Monterey County Water Resources
Agency (MCWRA) and the Department of the Army and Navy. When eligible costs
are incurred, a corresponding grant payment receivable is recognized, less an
allowance for costs that may be subsequently ruled ineligible. All capital grant
funds and capacity charge fees are recognized in the statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
14. Net Position
The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is
categorized as follows:
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net position consists
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced capital-related
deferred outflows or resources and capital-related borrowings and deferred
inflows of resources.

x

Restricted Net Position – This component of net position consists of
constraints placed on net position use through external constraints imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

x

Unrestricted Net Position – This component of net position consists of net
position that do not meet the definition of restricted or investment in capital
assets, net of related debt.

AF
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x

15. Budgetary Policies

R

The Agency adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and
evaluation purposes. Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons
of actual revenues and expenses with planned revenues and expenses for the
period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for commitments related to
unperformed contracts for construction and services.
16. Effect of New Accounting Standards

D

Note 1:

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Agency implemented the following
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards:
GASB Statement No. 68 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 will improve the decision-usefulness of
information in employer and governmental nonemployer contributing entity financial
reports and will enhance its value for assessing accountability and interperiod equity
by requiring recognition of the entire net pension liability and a more comprehensive
measure of pension expense. Decision-usefulness and accountability also will be
enhanced through new note disclosures and required supplementary information.
The requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods
beginning after June 15, 2014. The Agency implemented this Statement during the
year ended June 30, 2015, please refer to Note 11.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
GASB Statement No. 71 – Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent
to the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. The
objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the
transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made
by a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a
defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government's
beginning net pension liability. The provisions of GASB Statement No. 71 are
effective for financial statements beginning after June 15, 2014.
Additional standards released by GASB impacting future fiscal years are as follows:

AF
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GASB Statement No. 72 – Fair Value Measurement and Application. This
Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value
measurements. The definition of fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. This Statement provides guidance for
determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This
Statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and
disclosures related to all fair value measurements. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for financial statement for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2015. The Agency has not fully judged the effect of the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 72 as of the date of the basic financial statements.

R

GASB Statement No. 73 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and
Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. The objective of
this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about pensions included in
the general purpose external financial reports of state and local governments for
making decisions and assessing accountability. This Statement results from a
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and
financial reporting for all postemployment benefits with regard to providing
decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. The provisions in Statement
73 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015 – except those
provisions that address employers and governmental nonemployer contributing
entities for pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68, which are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016. The Agency has not fully
judged the effect of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 73 as of the date of
the basic financial statements.

D

Note 1:

12

MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
GASB Statement No. 74 – Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans
Other Than Pension Plans. The objective of this Statement is to improve the
usefulness of information about postemployment benefits other than pensions
(other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external
financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions
and assessing accountability. This Statement results from a comprehensive review
of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for
all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing
decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. The provisions in Statement
74 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016. The Agency has not
fully judged the effect of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 74 as of the
date of the basic financial statements.

R
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GASB Statement No. 75 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for
postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or
OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental
employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This
Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits
(pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information,
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating
additional transparency. The provisions in Statement 75 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2017. The Agency has not fully judged the effect of the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 as of the date of the basic financial
statements.
GASB Statement No. 76 – The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments. The objective of this Statement
is to identify—in the context of the current governmental financial reporting
environment—the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles used to
prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity
with GAAP and the framework for selecting those principles. This Statement reduces
the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use
of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting
treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified within a source of
authoritative GAAP. The provisions in Statement 76 are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The Agency has not fully judged the effect of
the implementation of GASB Statement No. 76 as of the date of the basic financial
statements.

D

Note 1:

13

MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Note 1:

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
GASB Statement No. 77 – Tax Abatement Disclosures. The objective of this
Statement is to provide financial statement users with essential information about the
nature and magnitude of the reduction in tax revenues through tax abatement
programs in order to better assess whether current-year revenues were sufficient to
pay for current-year services, compliance with finance-related legal or contractual
requirements, where a government’s financial resources come from and how it uses
them, and financial position and economic condition and how they have changed
over time. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2015. The Agency has not fully judged the effect of
the implementation of GASB Statement No. 77 as of the date of the basic financial
statements.
Cash and Investments

AF
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Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2015, are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:
2015

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted-cash and cash equivalents

$

5,536,874
805,518

Total cash and cash equivalents

$

6,342,392

R

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, consist of the following:

2015

Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions
Deposits in money market mutual funds
Deposits in Monterey County Pooled Investment Fund
Deposits in Local Agency Investment Fund
Certificates of deposit

$

600
6,286,980
434
40,454
10,924
3,000

$

6,342,392

D

Note 2:

Total cash and cash equivalents
As of June 30, the Agency's authorized pooled deposits had the following average weighted
maturities:

2015
Monterey County Pooled Investment Fund
Local Agency Investment Fund

$

422
239

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Agency’s
Investment Policy
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized in accordance with the
California Government Code or the Agency’s investment policy, where more restrictive.
Additionally, certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the Agency’s
investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and
concentration of credit risk are discussed. This section also addresses investments of debt
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Cash and Investments (Continued)
proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of
the Agency.

Maximum
Percentage
Allowed

Authorized Investment Type
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
180 days
270 days
5 years
1 year
92 days
5 years
N/A
N/A
5 years
N/A
N/A
N/A

None
None
None
None
40%
25%
30%
None
20% of base
30%
20%
20%
20%
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
30%
10%
None
None
None
None
10%
10%
None
None
None
None

R
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Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants
Registered State Bonds, Notes Warrants
U.S. Treasury Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Banker's acceptances
Commercial Paper
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Repurchase Agreements
Reverse Repurchase Agreements
Medium-Term Corporate Notes
Mutual Funds
Money Market Mutual Funds
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities
County Pooled Investment Funds
Local Agency Investment Fund
Joint Powers Authority Pools

Maximum
Investment in
One Issuer

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit
risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of
its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. With
respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s
indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment
pools (such as LAIF).

D

Note 2:

The California Government Code and the Agency’s investment policy do not contain legal or
policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or
investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units
by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under
state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the
public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure Agency deposits
by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public
deposits. The Agency has deposits with various banks with various bank balances as of
June 30, 2015. Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 per bank for
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Cash and Investments (Continued)
specific accounts are federally insured and the remaining balance should be collateralized in
accordance with the Code; however, the collateralizing securities are not held in the Agency’s
name.
Monterey County Treasurer Fund
The Monterey County Pooled Investment Fund (MCPIF) is a pooled investment fund
program governed by the County of Monterey Board of Supervisors, and administered by the
County of Monterey Treasurer and Tax Collector. Investments in MCPIF are highly liquid as
deposits and withdrawals can be made at any time without penalty. MCPIF does not impose
a maximum investment limit.

AF
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The County of Monterey’s bank deposits are either Federally insured or collateralized in
accordance with the California Government Code. Pool detail may be obtained
from the County of Monterey Treasurer-Tax Collector’s Office – 168 West Alisal Street,
Salinas, California 93901, or the Treasurer and Tax Collector’s office website at
www.co.monterey.ca.us/taxcollector/.
Investment in State Investment Pool

R

The Agency is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California. The fair value of the Agency’s investment in this pool is reported in the
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the Agency’s pro-rata share of
the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of
that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
Interest Rate Risk

D

Note 2:

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The longer the maturity an investment has the greater its fair value
has sensitivity to changes in market interest rates. The Agency’s investment policy follows
the Code as it relates to limits on investment maturities as a means of managing exposure
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
Investments at June 30, 2015 consisted of the following:
Remaining Maturity

Investment Type

Total

Money market mutual funds
Monterey County Pooled Investment Fund
Local Agency Investment Fund
Certificates of Deposit
Total

16

12 Months
Or Less

13 to 24
Months

$

434
40,454
10,924
3,000

$

434
10,924
-

$

40,248
3,000

$

54,812

$

11,358

$

43,248

MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
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Cash and Investments (Continued)
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization; however, LAIF is not rated.
Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Investment Type

Total

Total

$

434
40,454
10,924
3,000

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

AF
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Money market mutual funds
Monterey County Pooled Investment Fund
Local Agency Investment Fund
Certificates of Deposit

Minimum
Legal
Rating

$

54,812

Exempt
or
Not Rated
$

434
40,454
10,924
3,000

$

54,812

Concentration of Credit Risk

Salinas Valley Reclamation Project
In September 1995, construction began on a tertiary treatment plant, which would allow the
Agency to reclaim water and provide it to local agricultural water users (the Salinas Valley
Reclamation Project). The construction project was substantially complete at June 30, 1998,
and the Agency capitalized the cost of the project, totaling approximately $33 million as of
July 1, 1998. Funding for the construction project was provided by a loan from the United
States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR), a low interest loan from the California State
Revolving Fund (SRF) and funding from the Monterey County Water Resources Agency.

D

Note 3:

R

The Agency’s investment policy contains various limitations on the amounts that can be
invested in any one governmental agency or non-governmental issuer as stipulated by the
California Government Code greater than 5.0% of the Agency’s cash and investment
portfolio.

The Agency has contracted with the County of Monterey to provide the reclaimed water, which is
sold to agricultural water users. Water deliveries to users commenced during the later part of
fiscal 1999.
The Agency receives operating resources from the County sufficient to fund both the
ongoing operations and maintenance of the tertiary treatment plant and the debt service
requirements on the loans incurred by the Agency to build the plant. The sources of these
operating resources are expected to be generated from water user charges and
assessments. In addition, the Agency has contracted with the County to provide services
relating to the distribution of the reclaimed water to the users.
The Salinas Valley Reclamation Project (SVRP), from an operational standpoint, is
designed to be revenue-neutral to the Agency. All identifiable operating costs of the tertiary
treatment plant, including the storage and distribution of reclaimed water to the users, are
reimbursed from the County of Monterey. In addition, as noted above, the County is
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responsible for reimbursing the Agency for the debt service on the loans used to fund the
construction project as the payments come due. Since the tertiary treatment plant is an
asset of Agency, the Agency commenced depreciating the plant during the 1999 fiscal year,
the year it was placed into service.

AF
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Reimbursements from the County to pay the principal portion of the loans incurred to fund
the plant construction will eventually offset the depreciation expense on the treatment plant.
However those reimbursements will not be received by the Agency in the same timeline that
the depreciation expense is being charged to operations, thus creating a potential distortion
of the Agency’s results of operations. Therefore, the Agency is accruing a non-current
receivable from Monterey County for the unfunded depreciation expense on the reclamation
plant, approximately $1,137,695 per year. Reimbursements from the County for debt service
on the state loan commenced during the year ended June 30, 2000, and reimbursements on
the Bureau of Reclamation loan commenced during the year ended June 30, 2006.
Reimbursements that relate to principal repayments are credited against the receivable
balance. Such reimbursements totaled $1,198,327 for the year ended June 30, 2015.
The net impact of this treatment is to properly abate both the current depreciation
expense on the reclamation plant and the future principal reimbursement to the Agency
(otherwise reflected as income) resulting in no net impact to the statement of operations.
The County is the primary guarantor of both loans and is contractually obligated to the
Agency to provide the necessary debt service reimbursements as those amounts become
due as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037

1999 Loan
Principal
Receivable

Total

2003 Loan
Principal
Receivable

R

Fiscal
Year

$

(567,367)
(594,657)
(612,435)
-

D

Note 3:

$ (1,774,459)

$

(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)

$ (14,055,360)
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SVRP
Depreciation
Recovery
$

1,137,695
1,137,695
1,137,695
1,137,695
1,137,695
-

$ 5,688,475

Total
$

(68,552)
(95,842)
(113,620)
498,815
498,815
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)
(638,880)

$ (10,141,344)

Total
Receivable
Balance
$ 10,141,344
10,072,792
9,976,950
9,863,330
10,362,145
10,860,960
10,222,080
9,583,200
8,944,320
8,305,440
7,666,560
7,027,680
6,388,800
5,749,920
5,111,040
4,472,160
3,833,280
3,194,400
2,555,520
1,916,640
1,277,760
638,893
-
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Capital Assets
Major capital assets additions during the years include upgrades to the Agency’s regional
wastewater treatment plant and equipment purchases in the following schedules:
Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2015 were as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2014

Non-depreciable assets:
Land and easements
Construction-in-process

$

3,686,207
3,087,917

Depreciable assets:
Structures and improvements
Wastewater system
Equipment
Total depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation:
Structures and improvements
Wastewater system
Equipment

$

8,646,480

Balance
June 30, 2015

Deletions

(3,061,018)

$

(3,061,018)

(30,331)

3,686,207
8,643,048

(30,331)

12,329,255

100,352,851
50,063,118
86,204,022

-

675,639
2,385,379

(290,352)

101,028,490
50,063,118
88,299,049

236,619,991

-

3,061,018

(290,352)

239,390,657

(59,273,311)
(25,655,305)
(68,274,388)

(2,361,431)
(832,014)
(1,862,514)

-

290,352

(61,634,742)
(26,487,319)
(69,846,550)

(153,203,004)

(5,055,959)

-

290,352

(157,968,611)

83,416,987

(5,055,959)

3,061,018

-

81,422,046

Total depreciable assets, net

$

90,191,111

$

3,590,521

D

Total capital assets, net

8,646,480

6,774,124

R

Total accumulated depreciation

$

Transfers

AF
T

Total non-depreciable assets

Additions
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$

-

$

-

$

93,751,301
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Note 4:

Capital Assets (Continued)
Construction-In-Process
The Agency is involved in various construction projects throughout the year. Once
completed, projects are capitalized and depreciated over the life of the asset.
Construction-in-process consisted of the following projects as of June 30:

Project Description

Project No.
50
163
203
213
220
236
237
247
249
254
255
257
258
262
263
265
268
273
502
504
Various

$

2014

793,128
907,206
645,223
190,882
456,889
273,890
258,142
336,398
120,366
412,135
3,123,505
720,181
405,102

$

R

D

Total construction-in-process

Note 5:

$ 8,643,047

2013

782,120
478,189
640,597
120,279
28,342
103,307
436,003
499,080

AF
T

Reclamation variable speed drives
Digester gas project
Digester mixing upgrades
RTP SCADA upgrate
Bio-flox aeration upgrate
Grit removal rehabilitation
Plant air system rehabilitation
Primary clarifiers pump pit roofs
Biocell wall
Seismic evaluation of facility
Salinas pump station capacity enhancement
Castroville sluice gate vault coating
Sludge thickening rehabilitation
Coral St. pump station concrete repairs
Fountain St. pump station concrete repairs
Cogeneration compressors
Moss Landing pump station upgrade
Underground fuel tanks
Groundwater replenishment project
Brine outfall
Various other minor projects < $100,000

2015

$

$ 3,087,917

260,535
775,783
2,500,592
1,473,780
352,158
125,916
140,767
22,226
101,682
119,470
364,382

$ 6,237,291

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources
Changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources for 2015, were as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2014

Adjusted
Balance
July 1, 2014

Adjustments

Additions

Balance
June 30, 2015

Amortization

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred loss on debt defeasance, net
Deferred items related to pensions

$

662,898
-

$

1,159,448

$

662,898
1,159,448

$

340,119

$

(55,241)
-

$

1,270,555
1,499,567

Total deferred outflows of resources

$

662,898

$ 1,159,448

$

1,822,346

$

340,119

$

(55,241)

$

2,770,122

$

-

$

-

$

-

$ (4,654,209)

$

-

$

(4,654,209)

$

-

$

-

$

-

$ (4,654,209)

$

-

$

(4,654,209)

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred items related to pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources
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Note 6:

Compensated Absences
Changes to compensated absences for the 2015 fiscal year were as follows:

Note 7:

Balance
July 1, 2014

Earned

Taken

$ 805,192

$ 763,448

$ 721,934

Balance
June 30, 2015
$

846,706

Current
Portion

Long-term
Portion

$ 338,682

$ 508,024

Pension-Related Debt
Changes in pension related debt amounts for the 2015 fiscal year were as follows:
Adjusted
Balance
July 1, 2014

Adjustments

Additions

Deletions

AF
T

Balance
July 1, 2014
Bonds payable:
2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds
Net Pension Liability

$

8,180,000
-

$

Total bonds payable

$

8,180,000

$ 15,722,995

15,722,995

$

Balance
June 30, 2015

Current
Portion

8,180,000
15,722,995

$

-

$

(410,000)
(3,367,211)

$

7,770,000
12,355,784

$

440,000
-

$ 23,902,995

$

-

$

(3,777,211)

$ 20,125,784

$

440,000

2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds – CalPERS Side-Fund

D

R

As of June 30, 2003, CalPERS implemented risk-pooling for the Agency’s agent
multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. As a result, the
Agency’s defined benefit pension plan with CalPERS converted from an agent
multiple-employer plan to a cost sharing multiple-employer plan. This change in the type of
the plan created the CalPERS Side-Fund, which CalPERS financed at a 7.75% interest
rate. CalPERS actuarially calculated the amount needed to bring the Agency into the cost
sharing multiple-employer plan on an equal basis with other governmental agencies whom
all had less than 100 active and retired employees combined. The reason that CalPERS
switched these governmental agencies into the cost sharing multiple-employer plan was to
smooth out the annual costs related to the pension benefit over a longer period of time
resulting in a lower cost of service to the governmental agencies.
A portion of the Agency’s annual required contributions to CalPERS are actuarially
determined and shared by all governmental agencies within the cost sharing risk pool.
Also, the Agency is required to make annual payments to pay-down the CalPERS
Side-Fund, as well. The responsibility for paying-down the Agency’s CalPERS Side-Fund is
specific to the Agency and is not shared by all governmental agencies within the cost
sharing risk pool.
In fiscal year 2012, the Agency paid off the CalPERS Side-Fund by selling revenue bonds in
the amount of $8,855,000 and using the proceeds to pay off the liability. Interest on
the bonds is payable semiannually beginning December 1, 2013 through June 1, 2026 at
a weighted average interest rate of 4.18%. This action resulted in the Agency incurring a
one-time charge of $8,672,655. The Agency, in actuality, has refinanced their debt
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Note 7:

Pension-Related Debt (Continued)
in order receive a significantly lower interest rate. As a result of this refunding, the Agency
expects to save approximately $120,000 per year going forward. Future debt service
payments are as follows:
Year
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2027

Principal
$

$

355,879
345,803
332,830
315,796
289,694
940,706
55,137

$

795,879
810,803
842,830
870,796
904,694
5,055,706
1,125,137

7,770,000

$

2,635,845

$

10,405,845

Current

Long-term

Net Pension Liability

Total

440,000
465,000
510,000
555,000
615,000
4,115,000
1,070,000

AF
T

Total

Interest

(440,000)

$

7,330,000

Note 8:

R

See note 11 detailing the net pension liability. The total liability at June 30, 2015 was
$12,355,784.
Bonds Payable

D

Changes in bonds payable amounts for the 2015 fiscal year were as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2014

Bonds payable:
2006 Revenue bonds
2013 Revenue bonds

Total bonds payable

$

Additions

Payments

Balance
June 30, 2015

Current
Portion

1,550,000
11,517,539

$

-

$

(250,000)
(1,060,843)

$

1,300,000
10,456,696

$

250,000
1,008,144

$ 13,067,539

$

-

$

(1,310,843)

$ 11,756,696

$

1,258,144

2006 Revenue Bonds
In 2006, the Agency issued revenue bonds in the amount of $9,780,000. Interest was
payable semiannually beginning December 1, 2006 through June 1, 2026 at a weighted
average interest rate of 4.77%. Principal payments were to begin in June 30, 2014. The
bonds were issued to finance the construction of a bio-solid watering facility, a new
cogeneration facility, and the Salinas pump capacity enhancement project.
In 2013, the Agency refunded $7,780,000 of the 2006 revenue bonds, leaving $2,000,000 in
principal to be repaid in the following schedule. As a result, a portion of the Agency’s 2006
revenue bonds are considered defeased and the liability for that obligation has been removed
from the Agency’s financial statements.
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Bonds Payable (Continued)
Year

Principal

2016
2017
2018

$

Interest

Total

250,000
75,000
975,000

$

62,562
51,938
48,750

$

312,562
126,938
1,023,750

Total

1,300,000

$

163,250

$

1,463,250

Current

(250,000)

Long-term

$

1,050,000

AF
T

2013 Revenue Bonds
In 2013, the Agency issued revenue refunding bonds in the amount of $12,241,619.
Interest is payable December 2013 through June 2026 at an interest rate of
2.14%. Principal payments will commence in June 2014. A portion of the proceeds from the
bonds was used to refund the balance of the 2003 revenue refunding bonds ($3,220,000)
and the remaining balance of the proceeds was used to refund a portion of the 2006
revenue bonds ($7,780,000).

R

The Agency completed the advance refunding to reduce the Agency’s total debt service
payments over the next thirteen years by a present-value amount of approximately
$833,589 and to obtain an economic gain of approximately $963,197. Also, the refunding
issuance resulted in a deferred loss of $718,140, which will be amortized over the
remaining life of the debt service.
Future remaining debt service payments are as follows:

D

Note 8:

Year

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2027

Principal
$

Total
Current
Long-term

Total

1,008,144
1,110,918
136,292
1,049,209
976,162
5,169,297
1,006,674

$

223,773
202,199
178,425
175,509
153,056
439,791
21,543

$

1,231,917
1,313,117
314,717
1,224,718
1,129,218
5,609,088
1,028,217

10,456,696

$

1,394,296

$

4,084,469

(1,008,144)
$

Interest

9,448,552
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Loans Payable
Changes in loans payable amounts for the 2015 fiscal year were as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2014

Loans payable:
1999 SRF loan
2003 USBR loan
Total loans payable

$

Additions

Payments

2,343,341
14,694,227

$

-

$

(559,446)
(648,303)

$ 17,037,568

$

-

$

(1,207,749)

Balance
June 30, 2015

$

Current
Portion

1,783,895
14,045,924

$

576,789
638,879

$ 15,829,819

$

1,215,668

AF
T

Monterey County Guaranteed Loans for the Salinas Valley Reclamation Project
1999 State Revolving Fund Loan

In 1999, the Agency participated in the California State Revolving Fund Loan Program with a
maximum loan amount of $8,850,000 at an interest rate of 3.03% per annum. The loan
is payable in annual installments of approximately $632,090, which commenced
March 31, 2000, including interest, with final payment due March 31, 2018. Monterey County
guarantees repayment of this loan for the Salinas Valley Reclamation Project (See note 3).

R

Future remaining debt service payments are as follows:
Year

$

D

2016
2017
2018

Principal

Total

Current

Long-term

Interest

Total

576,789
594,670
612,436

$

55,301
37,420
18,987

$

632,090
632,090
631,423

1,783,895

$

111,708

$

1,895,603

(576,789)
$

1,207,106

2003 United States Bureau of Reclamation Loan
In 2003, the Agency obtained a United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) loan with a
maximum loan amount of $20,544,400, which included $2,190,346 of interest during
construction (IDC). The majority of the loan is interest free. The Irrigable Excess Lands,
which average around 30% of the total irrigable lands, have a periodic interest rate of
7.625%. The annual amount of IDC is $180,828. Debt Service payments began on
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Loans Payable (Continued)
April 1, 2003, with final payment due December 2036. Monterey County guarantees repayment
of this loan for the Salinas Valley Reclamation Project (See note 3). Future remaining debt
service payments are as follows:
Year

Principal

Total
Current

$

Interest

638,879
638,879
638,879
638,879
638,879
3,194,397
3,194,397
3,194,397
1,268,338

$

14,045,924

$

Total

510,734
495,739
480,743
465,747
450,751
2,028,821
1,653,928
1,279,035
406,644

$

7,772,142

$

AF
T

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2037

$ 13,407,045

R

Long-term

(638,879)

D

Note 9:
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1,149,613
1,134,618
1,119,622
1,104,626
1,089,630
5,223,218
4,848,325
4,473,432
1,674,982
21,818,066
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Note 10:

Net Position
Calculation of net investment in capital assets as of June 30, were as follows:

Calculation of net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2015, were as follows
Capital assets - not being depreciated
Capital assets, net - being depreciated
Salinas Valley Reclamation Project receivable
Deferred loss on debt defeasance, net
Current:
Bonds payable
Loans payable
Non-current:
Bonds payable
Loans payable

2015
$

12,329,255
81,422,046
10,141,344
607,657
(1,258,144)
(1,215,668)

AF
T

(10,498,552)
(14,614,151)

Total net investment in capital assets

76,913,787

Restricted net position as of June 30, 2015, were categorized as follows:

805,518
241,782
(764,698)

Total restricted net position

282,602

R

Restricted - cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - restricted
Accounts payable from restricted assets

Unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2015, were categorized as follows:

184,055
98,778

Total non-spendable net position

282,833

D

Non-spendable net position:
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits

Spendable net position is designated as follows:
Bonds payable - pension related - current
Bonds payable - pension-related - non-current
Net pension liability
Deferred contributions on pension liabilities
Deferred inflows on pension contributions
Operating reserve

(440,000)
(7,330,000)
(12,355,784)
1,499,567
(4,654,209)
2,820,070

Total spendable net position

(20,460,356)
$

Total unrestricted net position

26

(20,177,523)

MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Note 11:

Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Description of Plans
The Agency’s Miscellaneous First Tier Plan, Second Tier Plan, and PEPRA
Miscellaneous Plan (Miscellaneous Plans) are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS). All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to
participate in the Agency’s Miscellaneous Plans. Benefit provisions under the
Miscellaneous Plans are established by State statue and Agency Board Approval.
CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the
Miscellaneous Plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership
information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

AF
T

Benefits Provided
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full
time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50
with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits
after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The
cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.

D

R

The Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) requires new benefits and
member contributions for new members as defined by PEPRA, that are hired after
January 1, 2013. These PEPRA members in pooled plans are reflected in the new
Miscellaneous and Safety risk pools created by the CalPERS Board in response to the
passage of PEPRA, beginning with the June 30, 2013 risk-pool valuations. Therefore,
pursuant to PEPRA, the Miscellaneous “Classic” plan is closed to new entrants as of
January 1, 2013.
The Miscellaneous Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015, are
summarized as follows:
Miscellaneous Plans

Hire date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

On or after
Prior to
Jan. 1, 2013
Jan. 1, 2013
(PEPRA)
(Tier 2)
2.0% @ 55
2.0% @ 62
5 years of credited service
monthly for life
50 and up
50 and up
52 and up
2.0% to 3.0% 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
6.891%
6.308%
7.761%
15.724%
10.282%
6.250%
Prior to
April 1, 2012
(Tier 1)
3.0% @ 60

27

MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
Contributions
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual
basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in
the rate. Funding contributions for all Miscellaneous Plans are determined annually on an
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The
Agency is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate
and the contribution rate of employees.

AF
T

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense
for each plan were as follows:
Employer
Proportionate Share
of Aggregate
Employer
Contributions

Employer
Contributions

$

1,159,448

$

1,634,624

R

Total

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
As of June 30, 2015, the Agency reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate
shares of the net pension liability of each Plan as follows:

D

Note 11:

Miscellaneous First Tier
Miscellaneous Second Tier
Miscellaneous PEPRA

Proportion
June 30, 2013
$

16,874,812
3,941
3,690

Proportion
June 30, 2014
$

12,350,198
2,885
2,701

Change
Increase/(Decrease)
$

(4,524,614)
(1,056)
(989)

The Agency’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of
June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to
June 30, 2014 using standard update procedures. The Agency’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the Agency’s long-term share of contributions to
the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers,
actuarially determined. The Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each
Plan as of June 30, 2013 and 2014 was as follows:
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Proportion - June 30, 2013
Proportion - June 30, 2014

First Tier
0.51410%
0.49971%

PEPRA
0.00011%
0.00011%

Second Tier
0.00012%
0.00012%

Change - Increase (Decrease)

-0.01439%

0.00000%

0.00000%

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Agency recognized pension expense of $844,335. At
June 30, 2015, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred Inflows of
Resources

AF
T

Deferred Outflows of
Resources
Pension contribution subsequent to
Measurement Date

$

1,190,306

Net Difference between Projected
and Actual Earnings on Pension
Plan Investments

R

Adjustment due to Difference in
Proportions
Change in employer's proportion
and differences between the
employer's contributions and the
employer's proportionate share of
contributions
Total

$

-

(4,152,117)

309,261

(26,916)

-

$

-

1,499,567

(475,176)
$

(4,654,209)

D

Note 11:

$1,190,306 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows or deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as
pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Outflows/(Inflows) of
Resources
$
(1,062,238)
(1,062,238)
(1,082,404)
(1,138,068)

Year Ended
June 30
2016
2017
2018
2019

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the total
pension liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2013 total pension
liability. The June 30, 2013 and the June 30, 2014 total pension liabilities were based on
the following actuarial methods and assumptions:
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Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return
Mortality Rate Table (3)

7.50%
2.75%
3.3% - 14.2% (1)
7.50% (2)
Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for
all Funds
Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing
Power Protection Allowance Floor on
Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter

AF
T

Post Retirement Benefit
Increase

Entry Age Normal Cost Method

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of Pension Plan Investment and Administrative Expenses; includes Inflation
(3) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.
For more details on this table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report on
the CalPERS website.

R

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including
updates to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report
can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% for each of the Plans.
To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount
rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount
rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing,
none of the tested plans ran out of assets. Therefore, the assumed 7.50% discount rate is
adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate is not necessary. The long term expected
discount rate of 7.50% will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund
(PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover
Testing Report” that can be obtained from the CalPERS website under the GASB 68 section.

D

Note 11:

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be
determined without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50% investment
return assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses.
Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding
administrative expenses would have been 7.65%. Using this lower discount rate has resulted
in a slightly higher total pension liability and net pension liability. This difference was deemed
immaterial to the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension
Plan. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class.
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MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund
cash flows. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers
will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns
were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a
building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and
long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of
return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and
long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single
equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one
percent.
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The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the
discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of
administrative expenses.

R

Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Inflation Sensitive
Private Equity
Real Estate
Infrastructure and Forestland
Liquidity

New Strategic
Allocation
47.0%
19.0
6.0
12.0
11.0
3.0
2.0

Real Return
Years 1 - 10 (1)
5.25%
0.99
0.45
6.83
4.50
4.50
(0.55)

Real Return
Years 11+ (2)
5.71%
2.43
3.36
6.95
5.13
5.09
(1.05)

D

Note 11:

(1) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
(2) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate
The following presents the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each
Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the Agency’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1% point lower or 1% point higher than the current rate:

Plan Type
Miscellaneous First Tier
Miscellaneous PEPRA
Miscellaneous Second Tier

Discount Rate - 1%
6.50%
$
22,004,234
4,812
5,139

Current Discount Rate
7.50%
$
12,350,198
2,701
2,885

Discount Rate + 1%
8.50%
$
4,338,265
949
1,013

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
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MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Note 12:

Risk Management
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The Agency participates in one joint venture under a joint power agreement (JPA) with the
California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA). The relationship between the
Agency and CSRMA is such that CSRMA is not a component unit of the agency for
financial reporting purposes. CSRMA arranges for and provides workers’ compensation,
property, liability, errors, and omissions insurance for its member governmental entities. A
board consisting of representatives from its member entities governs the CSRMA. The
board controls the operations of the CSRMA including selection of management and
approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member agency
beyond their representation on the board. Each member agency pays a premium
commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits
proportionate to their participation in the CSRMA. CSRMA has budgeting and financial
reporting requirements independent of member units and its financial statements are not
presented in these financial statements; however, fund transactions between CSRMA and
the Agency are included in these statements. Audited financial statements are available
from the respective entity. The Agency has appointed one board member to the governing
board of CSRMA.
Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three
fiscal years and there were no reductions in the Agency’s insurance coverage during the
year ending June 30, 2015. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been
incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective
insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but
not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2015, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

R

Commitments and Contingencies
Urban Reclamation Projects

Project 501 – Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project

D

Note 13:

The Agency and Marina Coast Water District (MCWD) are involved in the Regional Urban
Water Augmentation Project (RUWAP) to construct a new pipeline that will convey recycled
water from the Regional Treatment Plant to recycled water users. This project is designed
to deliver recycled water from the Agency’s treatment facility for urban reclamation
purposes to users in and around the Monterey Peninsula. It will consist of a pump station
and pipe distribution system. The total cost of the project at completion is estimated to be in
the $40 million range. At present, the Agency has expended approximately $2.7 million on
the project and those costs have been capitalized as part of construction in progress. The
Marina Coast Water District is the lead agency for completion of the RUWAP project and
the Agency expects to be reimbursed from the customers who will be receiving the
advanced treated water.
Project 502 – Groundwater Replenishment Project
This project is designed to further treat secondary or tertiary treated effluent to an advanced
level such that it is suitable to inject the advanced treated water into the Seaside
Groundwater Basin. This project will include the construction of a microfiltration facility and
a reverse osmosis facility at the Agency’s treatment plant. In addition, additional pump
stations and pipelines will be required. The total cost of this project at completion is
estimated to be $60 million. At present the Agency has expended approximately
$2.4 million to date. The Agency expects to be reimbursed from the customers who will be
receiving the recycled water.
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MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Note 13:

Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
These projects represent the Agency’s response to tackling the problem of finding new
sources of water to meet the needs of the population in the Monterey Bay Area. There are
other proposed solutions to the water shortage problem, including a regional desalinization
plant that has been approved by the Public Utilities Commission, but is currently being
reconsidered by the project proponents. The final solution to the area’s water needs may
involve a number of separate individual solutions that collectively solve the shortage
problem. Management’s position has been, and continues to be, that whatever series of
alternatives are ultimately approved to solve the water shortage problem, recycled water
will be a vital, cost effective, part of the overall solution. Thus, capitalization of these costs
in construction work in progress was deemed appropriate.
Grant Awards
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Grant funds received by the Agency are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such
audit could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures
disallowed under terms of the grant. Management of the Agency believes that such
disallowances, if any, would not be significant.
Construction Contracts

The Agency has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation,
improvement or modification of water and wastewater facilities and distribution systems
within its service area. The financing of such construction contracts is being provided
primarily from the Agency’s replacement reserves and capital contributions.

R

Litigation

Note 15:

D

In the ordinary course of operations, the Agency is subject to claims and litigation from
outside parties. After consultation with legal counsel, the Agency believes the ultimate
outcome of such matters, if any, will not materially affect its financial condition.
Net Position Restatement
Beginning Net Position has been restated by $15,722,995 related to the accrued pension
liability. This restatement is a result of the new Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 68.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF AGENCY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
AS OF JUNE 30, 2015 AND THE LAST 10 YEARS*
Miscellaneous First Tier Plan

2015

Proportion of the net pension liability

0.19848%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

$

12,350,198

Covered-employee payroll

$

7,100,063

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll

173.94%

Plan's fiduciary net position

$

60,421,079

Miscellaneous PEPRA Plan
Proportion of the net pension liability
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Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

83.03%
2015
0.00004%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

$

2,701

Covered-employee payroll

$

288,411
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Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll
Plan's fiduciary net position

0.94%
$

13,212

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

D

83.03%

Miscellaneous Second Tier Plan

2015

Proportion of the net pension liability

0.00005%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

$

2,885

Covered-employee payroll

$

275,845

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll

1.05%

Plan's fiduciary net position

$

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

14,112
83.03%

Notes to Schedules:
Benefit changes: In 2015, benefit terms were modified to base public safety employee pensions on a final three-year average
salary instead of a final five-year average salary.
Changes in assumptions: In 2015, amounts reported as changes in assumptions resulted primarily from adjustments to expected
retirement ages of general employees.
* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.
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MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2015 AND THE LAST 10 YEARS*
Miscellaneous First Tier Plan

2015

Actuarially determined contribution

$

1,078,065

Contributions in relation to the actuarilly determined
contributions

(1,078,065)

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

-

Covered-employee payroll

$

7,100,063

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll

Actuarially determined contributions
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Miscellaneous PEPRA Plan

15.18%

2015

$

Contributions in relation to the actuarilly determined
contributions

R

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered-employee payroll

27,589

(27,589)
$

-

$

288,411

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll

D

9.57%

Miscellaneous Second Tier Plan

2015

Actuarially determined contributions

$

Contributions in relation to the actuarilly determined
contributions

22,041

(22,041)

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

-

Covered-employee payroll

$

275,845

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll

7.99%

* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.
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MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2015 AND THE LAST 10 YEARS*
Notes to Schedule:
Valuation Date: 6/30/2013
Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions rates:
Entry Age Normal in accordance with the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 68

Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return

Post Retirement Benefit
Increase
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Mortality Rate Table (1)

7.50%
2.75%
Varies by Entry Age and Service
7.50% Net of Pension Plan Investment and
Administrative Expenses; includes Inflation
Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for
all Funds
Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing
Power Protection Allowance Floor on
Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes
20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this
table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report.
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* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY
DEBT COVENANT SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
2015
Operating Revenues:
Wastewater user fees - residential customers
Wastewater user fees - others
Reclamation and diversion operations reimbursement
Other charges for services

$

15,313,846
6,151,220
3,571,865
880,314

Total Operating Revenues

25,917,245

Non-Operating Revenues:
Investment earnings
CSRMA insurance rebates
Other non-operating revenue, net

112,088
46,698
39,548

Total Non-Operating Revenues

198,334

Total Other Resources
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Other Resources:
Capacity charges
Proceeds from Salinas Valley Reclamation Project receivable
Debt service recovery - Salinas Valley Reclamation Project

835,956
1,207,749
604,511
2,648,216

Total Revenues and Resources Available

28,763,795

Operating Expenses:
Administrative
Finance and human resources
Environmental services
Field maintenance
Regional treatment plant - operations and maintenance
Regional treatment plant - administrative
Cogeneration
Major maintenance and operations projects
Reclamation - operations and maintenance
Reclamation distribution - operations and maintenance
Salinas River diversion facility - operations and maintenance
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1,804,455
1,968,384
1,463,464
3,394,669
7,384,874
563,212
1,148,987
371,077
1,958,677
1,280,642
76,010

Total Operating Expenses

21,414,451

Less Capitalized Expenses:
Overhead absorption - capitalized operating expenses

(1,491,439)

Total Expenses and Uses of Resources

19,923,012

Total Revenues and Resources Available, Net

8,840,783

Debt Service:
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt

2,928,592
1,286,781

Total Debt Service

$

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

4,215,373
2.10

39

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
To the Board of Directors
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
Monterey, California
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We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Monterey Regional
Water Pollution Control Agency, (the Agency) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated ___________, 2015.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

R

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Agency’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Agency’s internal control.
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Agency’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

To the Board of Directors
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
Purpose of this Report
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Brea, California
_____________, 2015
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The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
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__________________, 2015
To the Board of Directors
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
Monterey, California

Significant Audit Findings
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We have audited the financial statements of the Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
(the Agency) for the year ended June 30, 2015. Professional standards require that we provide you with
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.
We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 30, 2015. Professional standards
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Agency are described in the notes to the financial statements.
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As described in Note 1, the Agency changed accounting policies related to pensions reporting by
adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 in fiscal year 2014-2015.
Accordingly, the cumulative effect of the accounting change as of the beginning of the year is reported in
the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
We noted no transactions entered into by the Agency during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

To the Board of Directors
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, we detected misstatements as a result of
audit procedures which were material, and were subsequently corrected by management. The details of
these misstatements are described in a separate letter dated _______________, 2015.
Disagreements with Management

Management Representations
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For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated _____________________, 2015.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
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In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the Agency’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.
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Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Agency’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.
Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to the management discussion and analysis, schedule of
proportionate share of net pension liability and schedule of plan contributions, which are required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did
not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
We were engaged to report the debt covenant schedule, which accompanies the financial statements but
are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management
and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the

To the Board of Directors
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements
or to the financial statements themselves.
We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical sections, which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
The following new Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements were effective
for fiscal year 2014-2015 audit:
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GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An Amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27.
GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations.
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement
Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.
The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements are effective in the
following fiscal year audit and should be reviewed for proper implementation by management:
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Fiscal year 2015-2016

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.
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GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and Amendments to
Certain Provisions of GASB Statement Nos. 67 and 68.
GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for
State and Local Governments.
Fiscal year 2016-2017
GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans.
Fiscal year 2017-2018
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions.

To the Board of Directors
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency
Restriction on Use
This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Directors and management of the Monterey
Regional Water Pollution Control Agency and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.
Very truly yours,
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Brea, California

Monterey Regional Water
Pollution Control Agency
“Dedicated to meeting the wastewater and recycled water needs
of our member agencies, while protecting the environment.”

BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
NOVEMBER 13, 2015
INFORMATION ITEM
TOTAL COMPENSATION STUDY UPDATE
From:

Leara Sampson, Human Resources Administrator

Approval: GM
Legal
CFO
──────────────────────────────────────────────────────
Background:
The Board approved two-year MOUs with the four bargaining groups in June 2014. The
MOUs will be expiring in June 2016, so the Agency/Board will be negotiating with the
groups for new MOUs. In preparation for negotiations, the Agency contracted with Koff
and Associates, the consulting firm that completed the last study, to conduct a Total
Compensation Study. With all of the previous retirements and reorganization, staff
wanted Koff & Associates to review the updated job descriptions and provide updated
data that could be used during negotiations.
Staff is currently reviewing the draft data and will have more information for the
Committee at the January Budget & Personnel meeting.
Fiscal Impact
None at this time.

 Information only – no action needed.

Joint Powers Authority Member Entities:
Boronda County Sanitation District, Castroville Community Services District, County of Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Fort Ord, Marina Coast Water District, Monterey,
Moss Landing County Sanitation District, Pacific Grove, Salinas, Sand City, and Seaside.

Monterey Regional Water
Pollution Control Agency
“Dedicated to meeting the wastewater and recycled water needs
of our member agencies, while protecting the environment.”

BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
NOVEMBER 13, 2015
INFORMATION ITEM
BUDGET AMENDMENTS UPDATE
From:

Tori Hannah, Chief Financial Officer

Approval: GM
Legal
CFO
──────────────────────────────────────────────────────
Background:
The Agency’s Budget Amendment Policy allows staff to approve transfers between line
items and projects when a transfer is below $35,000. The attached file represents
budget amendments that were approved during the month of October.
Fiscal Impact
All administrative adjustments reflect transfers between budgeted line items in the
approved FY 15/16 Budget.

 Information only – no action needed.

Attachments:
A. October budget amendments

Joint Powers Authority Member Entities:
Boronda County Sanitation District, Castroville Community Services District, County of Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Fort Ord, Marina Coast Water District, Monterey,
Moss Landing County Sanitation District, Pacific Grove, Salinas, Sand City, and Seaside.

Budget Amendments - October
Transfers Under $35,000
From a capital outlay for Hatch Replacement to provide additional funding for a Flyght
Pump

$

12,940

From Training to Advertising to fund recruitment notices for unanticipated
retirements/resignations

$

5,000

From the Fort Ord and Castroville Doors capital outlay to fund costs
associated with flood-proofing of pump stations.

$

25,918

Attachment A
Page 1 of 1

Monterey Regional Water
Pollution Control Agency
“Dedicated to meeting the wastewater and recycled water needs
of our member agencies, while protecting the environment.”

BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
NOVEMBER 13, 2015
ACTION ITEM
CONSIDER LINE OF CREDIT BANKING PROPOSALS
From:

Tori Hannah, Chief Financial Officer

Approval: GM
Legal
CFO
──────────────────────────────────────────────────────
Background:
An engineering consulting firm estimated that monthly costs for the Groundwater
Replenishment (GWR) project could be as high as $5 million a month during peak
construction periods. The anticipated primary financing source for the GWR project is
the State Revolving Loan Fund. Since the State Revolving Fund provides loan
proceeds on a reimbursement basis, this could impact the Agency’s cash flow. While
staff anticipates requesting reimbursements on a monthly basis and asking for favorable
vendor repayment terms, delays could occur due to processing time. A line of credit
would assist the Agency with cash flow needs and financing of the GWR.
At the August Board Meeting, a budget amendment was approved to retain the services
of a financial advisor to solicit line of credit proposals. The Agency requested a $2
million line of credit to assist during the final design phase of the project, with a
transition to a $10 million line of credit during the construction phase. Proposals were
accepted through Friday, October 30, 2015. Three proposals were received from
highly-qualified lenders. All proposals were based on paying interest on the amounts
drawn on the line of credit, as well as the undrawn funds; with a component of interest
based on a variable London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) rate. A Draft Summary of
the proposal results and a multi-year LIBOR History Rate are provided in Attachments A
and B, respectively. The annual estimates reflect a non-taxable interest rate, exclude
bank counsel fees, and assume that the Agency will have an equivalent and amount of
drawn and undrawn funds during the stated period. Bank 1 provided the most favorable
terms with a three-year tax-exempt cost projected to be $109,630 at a 70% LIBOR +
0.50% interest rate on drawn funds and a 0.25% interest rate on the undrawn portion.
This amount would increase to $159,630 or 70% LIBOR +1.00% on borrowed funds, if
the line of credit is determined to be taxable.
Joint Powers Authority Member Entities:
Boronda County Sanitation District, Castroville Community Services District, County of Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Fort Ord, Marina Coast Water District, Monterey,
Moss Landing County Sanitation District, Pacific Grove, Salinas, Sand City, and Seaside.

Budget/Personnel Committee
November 13, 2015
Page 2

Fiscal Impact
Based on the estimates provided, the combined interest on the three-year line of credit
is anticipated to be approximately $109,630 if the loan is tax-exempt; and $159,630 if
the loan is determined to be taxable. This reflects the current LIBOR rate and the
assumption that on average there is an equivalent amount of funds drawn and undrawn.
The actual costs will vary based on the timing and amount of funds needed, along with
changes in the LIBOR rate. Additional costs that could incur include bank counsel and
administrative fees that are estimated not to exceed $60,000.
All costs would be applied to the Groundwater Replenishment Fund and submitted for
reimbursement through the State Revolving Loan. A Budget Amendment, along with
final costs would be presented to the Board, once the Agency and lender have a
completed Agreement.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests that the Budget/Personnel Committee recommend that the Board
authorize staff to enter into negotiations for a line of credit with Bank 1. The final
agreement is anticipated to be brought to the Board in January.
ATTACHMENTS:
A. Line of Credit Proposal
B. LIBOR Rate History (%)

Line of Credit Proposal Summary
Key LOC Terms

Draft 11/05/15

Bank 1

Bank 2

Bank 3

None; would appreciate opportunity
to bid on financial services

Opportunity to reasonably bid on ancillary
financial services in good faith.

Progress towards a banking relationship with
the initial $2 million, and firmer commitment
for $10 million

$2 Million for 1 Year
$10 Million for 2 Additional Years

1‐3‐5 Years, or other options

1‐Year / tbd

None

$7,000

$10,000

70% LIBOR + 1.00%

65% LIBOR + 1.15% (1‐year term)
65% LIBOR + 1.22% (3‐year term)
65% LIBOR + 1.30% (5‐year term)

70% LIBOR + 0.95% (tax‐exempt)
70% LIBOR +1.36% (taxable)

1.13%

1.27%

1.08%

1.00%

0.40%
(0.55% if less than 50% drawndown)

0.50%

‐‐
$11,330
$10,000
$21,330

$7,000
$12,735
$4,000
$23,735

$10,000
$10,830
$5,000
$25,830

Rate on $10 Million LOC Draws

70% LIBOR + 0.50% (tax‐exempt)
70% LIBOR + 1.00% (taxable)

Same as above

70% LIBOR + 0.75% (tax‐exempt)
70% LIBOR +1.08% (taxable)

Current Rate (With 1 Mo. LIBOR)

0.63%

1.34%

0.88%

0.25%

0.40%

0.50%

$31,650
$12,500
$44,150

$67,175
$20,000
$87,175

$44,150
$25,000
$69,150

$109,630

$198,085

$164,130

Banking Requirements
Initial $2 Million LOC
Origination Fee
Rate on $2 Million LOC Draws
Current Rate (With 1 Mo. LIBOR)
Rate on Funds Not Drawn
Estimated Annual Payments
Origination
$1M Drawn
$1M Undrawn
Total

Rate on Funds Not Drawn
Estimated Annual Payments
$5M Drawn
$5M Undrawn
Total
Total Financing Payments Over 3 Years
Assumes 1‐year $2 million LOC
and 2‐year $10 million LOC
(Excludes Costs of Issuance)
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0.00
Jan‐1990
Aug‐1990
Mar‐1991
Oct‐1991
May‐1992
Dec‐1992
Jul‐1993
Feb‐1994
Sep‐1994
Apr‐1995
Nov‐1995
Jun‐1996
Jan‐1997
Aug‐1997
Mar‐1998
Oct‐1998
May‐1999
Dec‐1999
Jul‐2000
Feb‐2001
Sep‐2001
Apr‐2002
Nov‐2002
Jun‐2003
Jan‐2004
Aug‐2004
Mar‐2005
Oct‐2005
May‐2006
Dec‐2006
Jul‐2007
Feb‐2008
Sep‐2008
Apr‐2009
Nov‐2009
Jun‐2010
Jan‐2011
Aug‐2011
Mar‐12
Oct‐12
May‐13
Dec‐13
Jul‐14
Feb‐15
Sep‐15

LIBOR Rate History (%)

10.00

9.00
1‐Month

8.00
3‐Month

7.00
6‐Month

6.00
12‐Month

5.00

4.00

3.00

2.00

1.00
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